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IN THE NEXT 4 YEARS WE’LL OPEN MORE THAN 500 
NEW STORES—EXPANDING TO 1400 LOCATIONS.

2003 was another year of rapid expansion for Pacific Sunwear. We opened 72 new PacSun and PacSun
Outlet stores and added 14 new d.e.m.o. stores. Total stores in operation reached 877 and helped us achieve
another milestone—surpassing $1 billion in sales. Looking ahead, we know there’s a lot more growth
potential in both businesses. Our goal is to continue the pace of our expansion over the next four years and
open 523 new stores by the end of 2007. 
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D.E.M.O.

Hip-hop-inspired fashion has become an established part of mainstream teen culture. 
The solid pace of sales growth at our d.e.m.o. stores reflects this—same store sales up by 21% 
in 2003. We plan to reach a greater share of this rapidly expanding and underserved market 
by adding 279 d.e.m.o. stores over the next four years—bringing the total to 400 stores by 
the end of 2007.

+ 279 NEW STORES BY 2007 = 400
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+ 244 NEW STORES BY 2007 = 1,000PACSUN

As the only national retailer catering to the fast-growing surf and skate apparel market,
PacSun continued to fire on all cylinders last year. We delivered record annual sales as well as
strong same-store sales growth of 12.3%. We plan to add 244 new stores across the U.S. by the
end of 2007—expanding the number of PacSun and PacSun Outlet stores to 1,000.

ANNUAL REPORT 03 PACSUN 5





GROWTH IS IN OUR GENES—AND IN OUR APPAREL, 
FOOTWEAR AND ACCESSORIES.



GUYSGETTING IT RIGHT WITH THE GUYS

PacSun and d.e.m.o. have proven to be powerful growth engines reaching two distinct groups 
of young consumers. Because the surf/skate and hip-hop apparel markets have virtually no 
customer overlap, they comprise two entirely independent sources of growth. Our guys’ apparel,
currently at 55% of total apparel sales, has seen two years of expansion in same-store sales, and
should continue to grow significantly with the opening of new store locations.
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GIRLS

Soon after we introduced girls’ apparel at PacSun eight years ago we knew we had a big hit on
our hands. Today, girls’ apparel has soared to 45% of total apparel sales for the Company. At
d.e.m.o., where girls’ fashion now accounts for only 35% of total apparel sales, we have another
big opportunity. As girls continue adopting hip-hop and surf/skate brands, and as our larger,
more female-friendly store designs attract new shoppers, girls’ apparel should continue to be
one of our strongest growth drivers.

GO GIRLS!
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ACCESSORIES

What’s the sugar coating of any retail apparel business? Accessories. Rising to 19% of total sales
in 2003, accessories contribute significantly to our revenue growth. Hats, belts, wallets, watches,
backpacks and sunglasses—they all add interest, variety and, with their high margins, substantial
profits. During Back-to-School 2003, we launched another winning accessories line: private
brand fragrances for both guys and girls. 

PUTTING ACCESSORIES FRONT & CENTER
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FINDING THE SWEET SPOT IN FOOTWEARFOOTWEAR

We launched the PacSun footwear business in 1995. It brings a strong fashion component to our
mix and adds to our growth rate—with three consecutive years of double-digit, same-store
sales increases. Today, with a popular assortment of styles, PacSun is the only national retailer
of many of the brands we carry. In 2004, we plan an initial rollout of footwear in d.e.m.o. that
should help further expand our sales.
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PROPELLING OUR SALES WITH PROVEN 
RETAIL STRATEGIES.



BRANDS

Brands with a capital “B” are the single most important driver of our retail strategy. PacSun 
and d.e.m.o. customers know they’ll find all of the hottest surf/skate and hip-hop brands in 
our stores. By carrying multiple brands, we avoid becoming overly dependent on sales from 
any single brand. This significantly reduces our risk as fashion styles and brand preferences
inevitably change.

ACTIVE BRAND MANAGEMENT 
KEEPS SALES CLIMBING

14  PACSUN ANNUAL REPORT 03  



TRANSLATING NEW FASHION 
TRENDS INTO RETAIL MOMENTUM

TRENDS

Managing fashion trends involves far more than gut instincts. Regular feedback from teen 
panels and our store managers provides us with valuable insights. We also use pre-season 
merchandise testing in our stores to validate new items. It all adds up to smart merchandising
decisions. Real fashion trends (as opposed to short-term fads) usually take a year or more to 
play out, so the earlier we can identify them and get new merchandise on our shelves, the faster 
we can propel our sales. The bottom line is that we manage trends, not fads.
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REAL ESTATE

Selecting outstanding sites for our retail stores is a critical part of our growth strategy. You’ll
find PacSun and d.e.m.o. stores concentrated in high-traffic malls and shopping centers where 
a mix of anchor tenants provides a strong draw. We choose locations near other teen-oriented
retailers that offer amenities like food courts and movie theaters to attract young shoppers and
their busy parents. 

LOCATION, LOCATION, LOCATION
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CUSTOMER SERVICE CAPTIVATING CUSTOMERS WITH A 
WINNING IN-STORE EXPERIENCE

Every time a customer walks into one of our stores, we want him or her to feel at home.
Everything from the music we play to our eye-catching display and merchandising techniques
helps create a fun and focused experience. Our young, knowledgeable sales associates understand
that a no-pressure, high-energy atmosphere is what keeps our customers coming back to 
visit—and shop.

ANNUAL REPORT 03 PACSUN 17



LEVERAGING TWO FASHION LANGUAGES, THERE’S MUCH 
MORE TO COME FROM PACSUN AND D.E.M.O. 



LEVERAGING TWO FASHION LANGUAGES, THERE’S MUCH 
MORE TO COME FROM PACSUN AND D.E.M.O. 



TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

20   PACSUN ANNUAL REPORT 03  

I am pleased to report to you a very strong year 

of sales and earnings at PacSun. Our total sales 

grew by nearly $200 million to $1.04 billion, an

increase of 22.9%. Total comparable store sales grew

by 13.1% with PacSun comps up 12.3% and d.e.m.o.

comps up 21%. Earnings for 2003 grew a very

healthy 61% which followed 2002 growth of 80%.

Our Company has become a very dominant player in

teen retailing. We operate four businesses, PacSun

stores, PacSun Outlet stores, d.e.m.o. stores and a very

strong and profitable e-commerce business. These

businesses combine strong teenage brands coupled

with highly accepted private label merchandise.

Our sales per square foot grew to $363 in 2003 

and I am especially proud of our d.e.m.o. division 

achieving sales of $405 per square foot. d.e.m.o. is a

strong, non-cannibalizing growth vehicle. Today,

the Company operates successfully in 50 states and

Puerto Rico. We posted strong comparable store sales

growth in all geographic regions in 2003. Because of

our successful and rapid expansion in the past few

years, we have a young store base. Forty-six percent

of our stores are three years old or less.

We ended 2003 with 877 stores and expect to end

2004 with 987 stores. During 2004, we expect 

to expand 35 of our most productive PacSun and

d.e.m.o. stores as well. We expect to grow the

Company to 1,400 stores by the end of 2007 which

will include approximately 1,000 PacSun stores and

400 d.e.m.o. stores.  

The growth of girls’ apparel continues to drive 

much of our success in both of our divisions. 

Over and above the sheer benefit of meeting the 

apparel needs of our young female customer, we

have seen a very big build in our accessory and 

shoe sales as well. The female shopping our store

shops more frequently than the male. She is also 

buying more outfits versus her male counterpart

who buys items. With this said, the number of 

transactions, items per transaction, and dollar 

value of each transaction rose in 2003 in both 

PacSun and d.e.m.o.



TWO RETAIL CONCEPTS—WITH ZERO CUSTOMER OVERLAP

PACSUN

D.E.M.O.

SURF AND SKATE

HIP - HOP

PacSun and d.e.m.o. customers are
drawn from non-overlapping teen 

subcultures—providing the Company
two completely independent sources of

sales and growth. 
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PROJECTED STORE GROWTH

We plan to continue 
our expansion over the next 
four years—increasing our

square footage at a 13-15% annual
rate—and growing to a total of 

1400 stores by 2007.

1,400

1,250

1,110

2004

990

2005 2006 2007

YEAR

NUMBER OF STORES



Greg H. Weaver
Chairman of the Board and 

Chief Executive Officer
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“PacSun ranked number 11 on The Wall Street 
Journal list of the Ten Year Best Stock Performers.”  
Wall Street Journal, March 8, 2004

Our marketing efforts have been well received in

2003. Several photographs from our ads are displayed

in this annual report to give you a sense of our 

image campaign. An added benefit to a growing girls’ 

business is that she is so much more responsive to 

fashion advertising. Her response to our advertising

has been very positive enabling us to gain market share

and generate strong same store sales the past two years.

We, as a team, have grown immensely in recent

years. Not just in terms of sales and earnings, but in

understanding the needs of teenagers on a national

basis, now with two very distinct retail concepts.

We are first and foremost a customer driven

retail chain.

We are committed to running a Company that looks

to its customers and its employees for feedback. 

We strive to raise the bar and constantly seek

improvement. This philosophy is deeply part of

our culture.

I thank our valued employees throughout the United

States and Puerto Rico. I applaud them on the industry

leading results they have achieved.

I thank our vendors for helping to build a large,

highly successful and still growing business.

My thanks to all shareholders for your continued

support of the Company.

Yours truly,
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED OPERATING DATA

Number of stores open at end of period
Average net sales per store
Average net sales per gross square foot
Comparable store net sales increase/(decrease)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET DATA

Working capital
Total assets
Shareholders’ equity

CONSOLIDATED OPERATING RESULTS

Net sales
Operating income
Net income
Net income per share, diluted
Shares used in computing per share amounts (in 000’s)

(FISCAL YEAR END, IN MILLIONS)

$ 846

81

50

$ 0.66

75,147

$ 685

44

28

$ 0.37

74,488

2002 2001

$ 1,040
128
80

$ 1.02
78,850

2003( IN MILLIONS EXCEPT FOR SHARE AMOUNTS)

$ 109

400

$ 302

$ 79

355

$ 248

$ 243
573

$ 429

791

$ 1,102,000

$ 330

9.7%

718

$ 1,031,000

$ 321

(2.5%

877
$ 1,229,000
$ 363

13.1%
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TOTAL STORES

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

450

877

589

718

791

EARNINGS PER SHARE

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

$.49

$1.02

$.54

$.37

$.66

NET INCOME ( IN MILLIONS)  

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

$35.3

$80.2

$39.8

$27.6

$49.7

TOTAL SALES ( IN MILLIONS)  

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

$437

$1,040

$589

$685

$846
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STORE LOCATIONS

PACSUN & OUTLETS

STORE NUMBERS AS OF FEBRUARY 1, 2004

Alabama
Alaska
Arizona
Arkansas
California
Colorado
Connecticut
Delaware
Florida
Georgia
Hawaii
Idaho
Illinois
Indiana
Iowa
Kansas
Kentucky
Louisiana
Maine
Maryland
Massachusetts
Michigan
Minnesota
Mississippi
Missouri
Montana
Nebraska
Nevada
New Hampshire
New Jersey
New Mexico
New York
North Carolina
North Dakota
Ohio
Oklahoma
Oregon
Pennsylvania
Rhode Island
South Carolina
South Dakota
Tennessee
Texas
Utah
Vermont
Virginia
Washington
West Virginia
Wisconsin
Wyoming
Puerto Rico

Total stores

D.E.M.O.

12
3

15
1

86
15
10
4

55
20
6
4

22
16
8
6
7

10
4

16
21
27
15
2

12
4
4
7
6

23
6

35
19
4

33
4
9

46
2

11
2

11
47
11
4

20
20
7

14
1
9

756
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TOTAL

12
3

18
1

112
16
11
4

70
26
7
4

27
19
8
6
8

14
5

20
24
31
17
2

12
4
4
7
6

29
6

40
22
4

38
4
9

53
2

14
2

12
53
11
4

22
20
7

14
1

12

877

3

26
1
1

15
6
1

5
3

1
4
1
4
3
4
2

6

5
3

5

7

3

1
6

2

3

121

STATES



FINANCIAL REVIEW



PacSun common stock trades on the nasdaq 

stock market under the symbol psun

Additional information is available

on our web site www.pacsun.com
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
( IN  THOUSANDS,  EXCEPT PE R SHARE AN D SELECTED OPERATI NG  DATA)

Jan. 31, Feb. 1, Feb. 2, Feb. 4, Jan. 30,
F ISCA L YE AR  E NDED ( 1 ) 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT DATA:
Net sales $ 1,040,294 $ 846,393 $ 684,840 $ 589,438 $ 436,808

Cost of goods sold (including buying,
distribution and occupancy costs) 676,977 562,710 464,660 391,816 284,187

Gross margin 363,317 283,683 220,180 197,622 152,621

Selling, general and administrative expenses 235,068 202,445 175,898 133,999 96,117

Operating income 128,249 81,238 44,282 63,623 56,504

Net interest income/(expense) 732 (594) 470 1,344 916

Income before income tax expense 128,981 80,644 44,752 64,967 57,420

Income tax expense 48,768 30,967 17,186 25,213 22,119

Net income $ 80,213 $ 49,677 $ 27,566 $ 39,754 $ 35,301

Net income per share, diluted (2) $ 1.02 $ 0.66 $ 0.37 $ 0.54 $ 0.49

Weighted average shares outstanding, diluted (2) 78,850 75,147 74,488 73,234 72,427

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED OPERATING DATA:
Stores open at end of period 877 791 718 589 450

Stores opened during period 90 85 135 142 111

Stores closed during period 4 12 6 3 3

Capital expenditures (000’s) $ 40,211 $ 40,423 $ 92,936 $ 61,869 $ 40,219

Average net sales per gross square foot (3) (4) $ 363 $ 330 $ 321 $ 368 $ 398

Average net sales per store (000’s) (3) (4) $ 1,229 $ 1,102 $ 1,031 $ 1,082 $ 1,084

Square footage of gross store space 2,996,635 2,647,343 2,319,149 1,764,123 1,254,373

Comparable store net sales 
increase/(decrease) (4) (5) 13.1% 9.7% (2.5)% 3.5% 7.8%

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Working capital $ 242,992 $ 109,305 $ 78,899 $ 79,799 $ 67,351

Total assets 575,261 399,743 355,440 277,453 209,342

Long-term debt 228 1,102 24,597 — —
Shareholders’ equity $ 428,762 $ 302,391 $ 247,955 $ 213,131 $ 161,826

(1)Except for the fiscal year ended February 4, 2001, which included 53 weeks, all fiscal years presented included 52 weeks. Effective February 1, 2002, the Company
changed its fiscal year end from the Sunday closest to the end of January to the Saturday closest to the end of January. As a result, the last day of fiscal 2001 was
Saturday, February 2, 2002.

(2)Adjusted to give effect to the three-for-two stock splits effected as of August 25, 2003, December 18, 2002 and June 8, 1999.

(3) For purposes of calculating these amounts, the number of stores and the amount of square footage reflect the number of months during the period that new stores
and closed stores were open.

(4) These amounts have been adjusted to exclude the fifty-third week in the fiscal year ended February 4, 2001. 

(5)Stores are deemed comparable stores on the first day of the first month following the one-year anniversary of their opening, relocation, expansion or conversion. In
conjunction with the expansion or relocation of certain stores to a larger format with a square footage increase of 15% or more or with the conversion of certain PacSun
stores to the d.e.m.o. format, the Company excludes each such store’s net sales results from the first day of the month of its expansion, relocation or conversion.



January 31, February 1,
2004 2003

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 142,840 $ 36,438

Short-term investments 33,035 —
Accounts receivable 5,194 2,916

Merchandise inventories 147,751 123,433

Prepaid expenses, includes $10,711 and $9,664 of prepaid rent, respectively 16,492 14,871

Deferred income taxes 8,224 4,975

Total current assets 353,536 182,633

Property and Equipment:
Land 12,156 12,156

Buildings and building improvements 26,686 26,680

Leasehold improvements 119,210 111,431

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 173,222 148,377

Total property and equipment 331,274 298,644

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (127,630) (97,131)

Net property and equipment 203,644 201,513

Other Assets:
Goodwill 6,492 6,492

Deferred compensation and other assets 11,589 9,105

Total other assets 18,081 15,597

Total assets $ 575,261 $ 399,743

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 38,668 $ 28,456

Accrued liabilities 54,966 34,522

Current portion of capital lease obligations 1,008 1,521

Current portion of long-term debt 878 829

Income taxes payable 15,024 8,000

Total current liabilities 110,544 73,328

Long-term Liabilities: 
Long-term debt, net of current portion 228 1,102

Long-term capital lease obligations, net of current portion 1,227 2,236

Deferred compensation 10,925 7,097

Deferred rent 12,046 10,574

Deferred income taxes 11,529 3,015

Total long-term liabilities 35,955 24,024

Commitments and contingencies (Note 7)

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized; none issued and

outstanding — —
Common stock, $.01 par value; 170,859,375 shares authorized; 78,351,302 and 

74,233,146 shares issued and outstanding, respectively 784 742

Additional paid-in capital 138,877 92,761

Retained earnings 289,101 208,888

Total shareholders’ equity 428,762 302,391

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 575,261 $ 399,743

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
( IN  T HOUSANDS , EXCEPT  SHARE AMOUNTS)
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January 31, February 1, February 2,
F IS C A L Y E A R E N D E D 2004 2003 2002

Net sales $ 1,040,294 $ 846,393 $ 684,840

Cost of goods sold, including buying, distribution and occupancy costs 676,977 562,710 464,660

Gross margin 363,317 283,683 220,180

Selling, general and administrative expenses 235,068 202,445 175,898

Operating income 128,249 81,238 44,282

Interest income/(expense), net 732 (594) 470

Income before income tax expense 128,981 80,644 44,752

Income tax expense 48,768 30,967 17,186

Net income $ 80,213 $ 49,677 $ 27,566

Comprehensive income $ 80,213 $ 49,677 $ 27,566

Net income per share, basic $ 1.05 $ 0.67 $ 0.37

Net income per share, diluted $ 1.02 $ 0.66 $ 0.37

Weighted average shares outstanding, basic 76,595,758 73,931,520 73,532,687

Weighted average shares outstanding, diluted 78,849,651 75,146,991 74,488,048

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
( IN  T HOUSANDS, EXCE PT SHARE  AND PER  S HA RE AMOUNTS)



Common Common Additional
Stock Stock Paid-in Retained

Shares Amount Capital Earnings Total 

BALANCE, FEBRUARY 4, 2001 72,993,230 $ 730 $ 80,755 $ 131,645 $ 213,130

Exercise of stock options and shares sold 
under employee stock purchase plan and 
restricted stock grant 740,400 7 4,254 — 4,261

Restricted stock award, vesting of shares — — 290 — 290

Tax benefits related to exercise of stock options — — 2,708 — 2,708

Net income — — — 27,566 27,566

BALANCE, FEBRUARY 2, 2002 73,733,630 737 88,007 159,211 247,955

Exercise of stock options and shares sold 
under employee stock purchase plan 500,704 5 3,439 — 3,444

Cancellation of fractional shares due to 
3-for-2 stock split (1,188) — (14) — (14)

Restricted stock award, vesting of shares — — 291 — 291

Tax benefits related to exercise of stock options — — 1,038 — 1,038

Net income — — — 49,677 49,677

BALANCE, FEBRUARY 1, 2003 74,233,146 742 92,761 208,888 302,391

Exercise of stock options and shares sold  
under employee stock purchase plan 4,119,753 42 30,339 — 30,381

Cancellation of fractional shares due to 
3-for-2 stock split (1,597) — (33) — (33)

Tax benefits related to exercise of stock options — — 15,810 — 15,810

Net income — — — 80,213 80,213

BALANCE, JANUARY 31, 2004 78,351,302 $ 784 $ 138,877 $ 289,101 $ 428,762

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
( IN  T HOUSANDS , EXCE PT SHARE  AMOUN TS)
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January 31, February 1, February 2,
FIS CAL YEAR ENDE D 2004 2003 2002

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 80,213 $ 49,677 $ 27,566

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 36,246 32,453 27,146

Loss on disposal of equipment 1,834 4,240 7,451

Tax benefits related to exercise of stock options 15,810 1,038 2,708

Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (2,278) 128 (290)
Merchandise inventories (24,318) (20,921) (19,819)
Prepaid expenses (1,621) (1,949) (1,669)
Deferred compensation and other assets 1,344 231 (127)
Accounts payable 10,212 (9,037) 5,861

Accrued liabilities 20,444 16,751 4,492

Income taxes payable and deferred income taxes 12,289 2,197 3,495

Deferred rent 1,472 1,815 1,548

Net cash provided by operating activities 151,647 76,623 58,362

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment in property and equipment (40,211) (40,423) (92,936)

Purchases of short-term investments (33,035) — —
Net cash used in investing activities (73,246) (40,423) (92,936)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 30,381 3,444 4,260

Cash paid in lieu of fractional shares due to 3-for-2 stock split (33) (14) —
(Repayments)/borrowings under long-term debt obligations (825) (25,504) 24,998

Principal payments under capital lease obligations (1,522) (824) (519)

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities 28,001 (22,898) 28,739

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 106,402 13,302 (5,835)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNINGOF FISCAL YEAR 36,438 23,136 28,971

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF FISCAL YEAR $ 142,840 $ 36,438 $ 23,136

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the period for:
Interest, including $428 of capitalized interest paid in fiscal 2001 $ 226 $ 944 $ 515

Income taxes $ 20,669 $ 27,732 $ 10,983

Supplemental disclosures of non-cash transactions: During the fiscal years ended February 1, 2 0 0 3 and February 2, 2 0 0 2, the Company
recorded an increase to additional paid-in capital of $291 and $290, respectively, related to the issuance of stock to satisfy certain
deferred compensation liabilities. During the year ended February 1, 2 0 0 3, the Company purchased a three-year computer maintenance
agreement under a long-term debt obligation for $2,413. During the years ended February 1, 2003 and February 2, 2002, the Company
acquired property pursuant to capital lease obligations in the amount of $3,016 and $493, respectively. Additionally, during the year
ended February 2, 2002, the Company financed the purchase of a vehicle for $24.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
( IN  THOUSANDS)



NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Nature of Business — Pacific Sunwear of California, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) is a leading specialty reta i l er of everyday
casual apparel, footwear and accessories designed to meet the needs of active teens and young adults. The Company operates three
nationwide, primarily mall-based chains of retail stores, under the names “Pacific Sunwear” (as well as “PacSun”), “Pacific Sunwear Outlet”
and “d.e.m.o.” Pacific Sunwear and Pacific Sunwear Outlet stores specialize in board-sport inspired casual apparel, footwear and related
accessories catering to teens and young adults. d.e.m.o. specializes in hip-hop inspired casual apparel and related accessories catering
to teens and young adults. In addition, the Company operates a website through a subsidiary which sells PacSun merchandise online,
provides content and community for its target customers, and provides information about the Company.

The Company’s fiscal year is the 52- or 53-week period ending on the Saturday closest to January 31. Fiscal 2003 was the 52-week
period ended January 3 1, 2 0 04. Fiscal 2 0 0 2 was the 5 2-week period ended February 1, 2 0 0 3. Fiscal 2 0 0 1 was the 5 2-week period ended
February 2, 2002. Fiscal 2004 will be the 52-week period ending January 29, 2005.

Principles of Consolidation —The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Pacific Sunwear of California, Inc. and its
subsidiaries, Pacific Sunwear Stores Corp. and ShopPacSun.com Corp. All intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Basis of Presentation — The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America necessarily requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements as well
as the reported revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments — Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 107 (“SFAS 107”), “Disclosures about Fair
Value of Financial Instruments,” requires management to disclose the estimated fair value of certain assets and liabilities defined by
SFAS 107 as financial instruments. Financial instruments are generally defined by SFAS 107 as cash, evidence of ownership interest in
an entity, or a contractual obligation that both conveys to one entity a right to receive cash or other financial instruments from another
entity and imposes on the other entity the obligation to deliver cash or other financial instruments to the first entity. At January 3 1, 2 0 04,
management believes that the carrying amounts of cash, short-term investments, receivables and payables approximate fair value because
of the short maturity of these financial instruments. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents — The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments purchased with an original maturity of three
months or less to be cash equivalents.

Short-term Investments – Short-term investments are classified as held-to-maturity and consist of marketable corporate and U.S. agency
debt instruments with original maturities of three months to one year and are carried at amortized cost. Cost is determined by specific
identification. At January 31, 2004, the market value of the Company’s portfolio is $32.7 million, consisting of U.S. agency debentures
of $16.8 million and corporate debentures of $15.9 million.

M e r chandise Inventories — M e r chandise inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market. Cost is determined
using the retail inventory method. At any one time, inventories include items that have been marked down to management’s best estimate
of their fair market value. Management bases the decision to mark down merchandise primarily upon its current rate of sale and the
age of the item, among other factors.

Property and Equipment — Leasehold improvements and furniture, fixtures and equipment are stated at cost. Amortization of leasehold
improvements is computed on the straight-line method over the lesser of an asset’s estimated useful life or the life of the related store’s
lease (generally 10 years). Depreciation on furniture, fixtures and equipment is computed on the straight-line method over five years.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets — On February 3, 2002, the Company adopted S FAS 142, “Goodwill and Intangible Assets,”
which revised the accounting for purchased goodwill and intangible assets. Under SFAS 142, goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite lives are no longer amortized but are tested for impairment annually and also in the event of an impairment indicator. The
Company completed the required transitional impairment test and the annual test and determined that no impairment existed. Any
s u bsequent impairment losses will be reflected in operating income. With the adoption of SFAS 1 4 2, the Company discontinued
a m o rtization of goodwill.

The Company evaluates the recoverability of goodwill at least annually based on a two-step impairment test. The first step compares
the fair value of each reporting unit with its carrying amount, including goodwill. If the carrying amount exceeds fair value, then the second
step of the impairment test is performed to measure the amount of any impairment loss. Fair value is determined based on estimated
future cash flows, discounted at a rate that approximates the Company’s cost of capital. Such estimates are subject to change and the
Company may be required to recognize impairment losses in the future.

Other Long-Lived Assets — On February 3, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets,” which superseded previous guidance on financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-
lived assets and for segments of a business to be disposed of. Upon adoption of SFAS 144, the Company reviewed long-lived assets
and determined that no impairment existed. Under SFAS 144, long-lived assets, including amortizing intangible assets, will be tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of such assets may not be recoverable.
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Insurance Reserves — The Company is responsible for workers’ compensation insurance claims up to a specified aggregate stop loss
amount. The Company maintains a reserve for estimated claims, both reported and incurred but not reported, based on historical claims
experience and other estimated assumptions. 

Income Taxes — Current income tax expense is the amount of income taxes expected to be payable for the current year. The combined
federal and state income tax expense was calculated using estimated effective annual tax rates. A deferred income tax asset or liability is
e s tablished for the expected future consequences of temporary differences in the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities.
The Company considers future taxable income and ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning in assessing the value of its deferred tax
assets. Evaluating the value of these assets is necessarily based on the Company’s judgment. If the Company determines that it is more
likely than not that these assets will not be realized, the Company would reduce the value of these assets to their expected realizable
value through a valuation allowance, thereby decreasing net income. If the Company subsequently determined that the deferred tax
assets, which had been written down, would be realized in the future, the value of the deferred tax assets would be increased, thereby
increasing net income in the period when that determination was made.

Litigation — The Company is involved from time to time in litigation incidental to its business. Management believes that the outcome of
current litigation will not have a material adverse effect upon the results of operations or financial condition of the Company and, from
time to time, may make provisions for potential litigation losses. Depending on the actual outcome of pending litigation, charges in excess
of any provisions could be recorded in the future, which may have an adverse affect on the Company’s operating results (see Note 7).

S t o ck Split — On August 2 5, 2 0 0 3, the Company effected a three-for-two stock split. Shareholders’ equity was restated to give retroactive
recognition to the stock split in prior periods by reclassifying the par value ($247) of the additional shares arising from the split from
additional paid-in capital to common stock. Additionally, all share and per share amounts were restated to give effect to the stock split
in prior periods.

Revenue Recognition — Sales are recognized upon purchase by customers at the Company’s retail store locations or upon shipment
for orders placed through the Company’s website. The Company records the sale of gift cards as a current liability and recognizes a
sale when a customer redeems a gift card. The amount of the gift card liability is determined taking into account the Company’s 
estimate of the portion of gift cards that will not be redeemed or recovered. The Company accrues for estimated sales returns by 
customers based on historical sales return results. Sales return accrual activity for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended
January 3 1, 2 0 04 is as follows:

Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2002 Fiscal 2001

Beginning balance $ 460 $ 113 $ 113

Provisions 20,629 17,363 13,657

Usage (20,508) (17,016) (13,657)

Ending balance $ 581 $ 460 $ 113

Advertising Costs — Costs associated with the production of advertising, such as photography, design, creative talent, editing and
other costs, are expensed the first time the advertising becomes publicly available. Costs associated with placing advertising that has
been produced, such as television and magazine advertising, are expensed when the advertising becomes publicly available. Advertising
costs were $10,430, $8,897 and $12,967 in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Earnings per Share — The Company reports earnings per share in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 128, “Earnings Per Share.”
Basic earnings per common share is computed using the weighted average number of shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per common
share is computed using the weighted average number of shares outstanding adjusted for the incremental shares attributed to outsta n d i n g
options to purchase common stock. Incremental shares of 2,2 5 3,89 3, 1,2 1 5,47 1 and 9 5 5,36 2, in fiscal 2 0 0 3, 2 0 0 2 and 2 0 0 1, respectively,
were used in the calculation of diluted earnings per common share. Options to purchase 31,996, 2,033,399 and 2,377,778 shares of
common stock in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per common
share because the option exercise price was greater than the average market price of the common stock during the respective period.

Stock-Based Compensation — The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in accordance with Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 25 (APB 25). In March 2000, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Interpretation No. 44 of APB 25,
“Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation,” which, among other things, addressed accounting consequences
of a modification that reduces the exercise price of a fixed stock option award (otherwise known as repricing). The adoption of this
interpretation did not impact the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In December 2 0 0 2, the FASB issued SFAS 1 48, “Accounting for Stock - Based Compensation – Transition and Disclosure.” SFAS 1 48

amends SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” to provide alternative methods for voluntary transition to SFAS 123’s
fair value method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation (“the fair value method”). SFAS 148 also requires disclosure
of the effects of an entity’s accounting policy with respect to stock-based employee compensation on reported net income (loss) and
earnings (loss) per share in annual and interim financial statements. The Company is required to follow the prescribed disclosure format
and has provided the additional disclosures required by SFAS 148 for fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001 below.



SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” requires the disclosure of pro forma net income and earnings per share.
Under SFAS 1 2 3, the fair value of stock-based awards to employees is calculated through the use of option-pricing models, even though
such models were developed to estimate the fair value of freely tradable, fully transferable options without vesting restrictions, which
significantly differ from the Company’s stock option awards. These models also require subjective assumptions, including future stock
price volatility and expected time to exercise, which greatly affect the calculated values. The Company’s calculations were made using
the Black - S choles option-pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions: expected life, 5 years from option date; stock
volatility, 37.1% in fiscal 2003, 55.2% in fiscal 2002 and 71.4% in fiscal 2001; risk-free interest rates, 3.2% in fiscal 2003, 3.0% in fiscal
2002 and 4.4% in fiscal 2001; and no dividends during the expected term. The Company’s calculations are based on a single-option
valuation approach and forfeitures are recognized as they occur. If the computed fair values of the fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001 awards
had been amortized to expense over the vesting period of the awards, pro forma net income and earnings per share would have been
reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated in the following table:

Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2002 Fiscal 2001

NET INCOME

As reported $ 80,213 $ 49,677 $ 27,566

Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense 
determined under fair value based method for all awards, 
net of related tax effects (5,785) (5,589) (5,153)

Pro forma $ 74,428 $ 44,088 $ 22,413

NET INCOME PER SHARE, BASIC

As reported $ 1.05 $ 0.67 $ 0.37

Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense 
determined under fair value based method for all awards, 
net of related tax effects (0.08) (0.07) (0.07)

Pro forma $ 0.97 $ 0.60 $ 0.30

NET INCOME PER SHARE, DILUTED

As reported $ 1.02 $ 0.66 $ 0.37

Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense 
determined under fair value based method for all awards, 
net of related tax effects (0.07) (0.07) (0.07)

Pro forma $ 0.95 $ 0.59 $ 0.30

Comprehensive Income — The Company reports comprehensive income in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 130, “Reporting
Comprehensive Income.” SFAS 130 established standards for the reporting and display of comprehensive income. Components of
comprehensive income include net earnings (loss), foreign currency translation adjustments and gains/losses associated with investments
available for sale. There was no difference between net income and comprehensive income for fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001.

Segment Information – The Company operates exclusively in the retail apparel industry in which the Company distributes, designs and
produces clothing, accessories and related products. Operating results of the Company’s retail concepts and sales channels have been
aggregated due to the similarities of economic and operating characteristics among the retail concepts and sales channels as well as
their reliance on shared operating functions, including the sourcing, merchandising and distribution functions.

M e r chandise Risk — The Company’s success is largely dependent upon its ability to gauge the fashion tastes of its customers and
provide merchandise that satisfies customer demand. Any inability to provide appropriate merchandise in sufficient quantities in a timely
manner could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, operating results and financial condition.

New Accounting Pronouncements — In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections.” SFAS 145 amended certain provisions of SFAS 13 and requires
the fair value recognition of guarantee obligations under which the Company may become secondarily liable. The Company adopted
SFAS 145 during fiscal 2002. The adoption of SFAS 145 resulted in the recognition of a $.5 million liability related to the Company’s
guarantee of an assignee’s performance under a lease obligation (see Note 7).

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities,” which requires that
costs associated with exit or disposal activities be recognized when they are incurred rather than at the date of commitment to an exit or
d i s p o sal plan. SFAS 1 46 also establishes that the liability should initially be measured and recorded at fair value. The Company adopted
the provisions of SFAS 146 for exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002. The adoption of S FAS 146 has not had a
material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.
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In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45 (FIN 45), “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements
for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees and Indebtedness of Others.” FIN 45 elaborates on the disclosures to be made by the
guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. It also requires
that a guarantor recognize, at the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee.
The initial recognition and measurement provisions of this interpretation are applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or
modified after December 31, 2002; while the provisions of the disclosure requirements are effective for financial statements of interim
or annual reports ending after December 15, 2002. The adoption of FIN 45 has not had a material impact on the Company’s financial
position or results of operations.

In January 2003, the FASB issued F IN 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” and in December 2003, issued FIN 46(R)
(revised December 2003) “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities - An Interpretation of ARB No. 51.” In general, a variable interest
entity is a corporation, partnership, trust, or any other legal structure used for business purposes that either (a) does not have equity
investors with voting rights or (b) has equity investors that do not provide sufficient financial resources for the entity to support its
activities. FIN 46 requires certain variable interest entities to be consolidated by the primary beneficiary of the entity if the investors in
the entity do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance
its activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties. FIN 46(R) clarifies the application of Accounting
Research Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements” (ARB 51), to certain entities in which equity investors do not have the
characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without sub-
ordinated financial support from other parties. The consolidation requirements of FIN 46 apply immediately to variable interest entities
created after January 31, 2003. The consolidation requirements apply to older entities in the first fiscal year or interim period beginning
after June 15, 2003. Certain of the disclosure requirements apply in all financial statements issued after January 31, 2003, regardless of
when the variable interest entity was established. FIN 46(R) applies immediately to variable interest entities created after December 31,
2003, and to variable interest entities in which an enterprise obtains an interest after that date. It applies no later than the first reporting
period ending after December 15, 2004, to variable interest entities in which an enterprise holds a variable interest (other than special
purpose) that it acquired before January 1, 2004. FIN 46(R) applies to public enterprises as of the beginning of the applicable interim
or annual period. The Company believes that the adoption of FIN 46 and FIN 46(R) will not have a material impact on its financial posi-
tion or results of operations because the Company has no variable interest entities.

On February 2, 2 0 0 3, the Company adopted EITF 0 2-1 6, “Accounting by a Reseller for Cash Consideration Received from a Ve n d o r.”
The consensus reached by the EITF addressed the accounting for cash consideration received from a vendor, which includes vendor
allowances, rebates, cooperative advertising payments, etc. The consensus of the EITF establishes an overall presumption that cash
received from a vendor is a reduction in the price of a vendor’s products and should be recognized accordingly as a reduction in cost
of sales at the time the related inventory is sold. Some consideration could be characterized as a reduction of expense if the cash
received represents a reimbursement of specific, incremental, identifiable costs incurred by the retailer to sell the vendor’s products.
The adoption of EITF 02-16 did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

Reclassifications — Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

NOTE 2. DEFERRED COMPENSATION AND OTHER ASSETS

The Company maintains an Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (the “Executive Plan”) covering Company officers that is funded
by participant contributions and periodic Company discretionary contributions. For fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company made
contributions of $256, $206 and $175, respectively, to the Executive Plan. The deferred compensation asset balance represents the
investments held by the Company to cover the vested participant balances in the Executive Plan, which is represented by the deferred
compensation liability of $10,925 and $7,097 in long-term liabilities as of January 31, 2004 and February 1, 2003, respectively. For a
description of other employee compensation arrangements, see note 9. Deferred compensation and other assets consist of the following:

January 31, February 1, 
2004 2003

Deferred compensation $ 10,919 $ 7,565

Long-term maintenance contracts 502 1,359

Other assets 168 181

$ 11,589 $ 9,105



NOTE 3. GOODWILL

On February 3, 2 0 0 2, the Company adopted SFAS 1 4 2, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which eliminated amortization of good-
will and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. SFAS 142 requires, among other items, disclosure of the after-tax impact to
reported net income and earnings per share of the adoption of the statement for all periods presented. The following table recognizes
the after-tax impact to the Company’s operating results of the adoption of SFAS 1 4 2 as if the non-amortization provisions of the sta n d a r d
had been in effect for all periods presented:

Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2002 Fiscal 2001

Reported net income $ 80,213 $ 49,677 $ 27,566

Add back goodwill amortization (tax effected) — — 192

Adjusted net income $ 80,213 $ 49,677 $ 27,758

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE:
Reported net income 1.05 0.67 0.37

Add back goodwill amortization (tax effected) 0.00 0.00 0.01

Adjusted net income $ 1.05 $ 0.67 $ 0.38

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE:
Reported net income 1.02 0.66 0.37

Add back goodwill amortization (tax effected) 0.00 0.00 0.00

Adjusted net income $ 1.02 $ 0.66 $ 0.37

NOTE 4. CREDIT FACILITY

The Company has a credit facility with a bank, which expires April 1, 2007. The credit facility provides for a $45.0 million line of credit
(the “Credit Line”) through March 31, 2005 to be used for cash advances, commercial letters of credit and shipside bonds. The Credit
Line increases to $50.0 million from April 1, 2005 through March 31, 2006, and $60.0 million from April 1, 2006 through expiration on
April 1, 2007. Interest on the Credit Line is payable monthly at the bank’s prime rate (4.0% at January 31, 2004) or at optional interest
rates that are primarily dependent upon the London Inter-bank Offered Rates for the time period chosen. The Company did not borrow
under the credit facility at any time during fiscal 2 0 0 3. The Company had $ 1 3.1 million outstanding in letters of credit at January 3 1, 2 0 04.
The credit facility subjects the Company to various restrictive covenants, including maintenance of certain financial ratios, and prohibits
payment of cash dividends on common stock. At January 31, 2004, the Company was in compliance with all of the covenants.

NOTE 5. ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities consist of the following:
January 31, February 1, 

2004 2003

Accrued compensation and benefits $ 17,578 $ 14,420

Accrued capital expenditures 6,489 2,775

Accrued sales tax payable 6,189 2,290

Accrued sublease loss charges (Note 7) 5,543 3,550

Accrued restricted stock compensation (Note 9) 5,118 —
Accrued gift cards and store merchandise credits 4,618 5,967

Other 9,431 5,520

$ 54,966 $ 34,522

NOTE 6. INCOME TAXES

The components of income tax expense are as follows:

Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2002 Fiscal 2001

Current income taxes:
Federal $ 38,134 $ 23,938 $ 18,040

State 5,369 3,396 2,659

43,503 27,334 20,699

Deferred income taxes:
Federal 5,318 3,231 (3,066)
State (53) 402 (447)

5,265 3,633 (3,513)

$ 48,768 $ 30,967 $ 17,186
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A reconciliation of income tax expense to the amount of income tax expense that would result from applying the federal statutory
rate to income before income taxes is as follows:

Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2002 Fiscal 2001

Provision for income taxes at statutory rate $ 45,143 $ 28,225 $ 15,663

State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 3,455 2,469 1,438

Other 170 273 85

$ 48,768 $ 30,967 $ 17,186

The major components of the Company’s overall net deferred tax liability of $3,305 at January 31, 2004 and net deferred tax asset
of $1,960 at February 1, 2003, respectively, are as follows:

January 31, February 1, 
2004 2003

Current net deferred tax asset $ 8,224 $ 4,975

Long-term net deferred tax liability (11,529) (3,015)

Overall net deferred tax (liability)/asset $ (3,305) $ 1,960

COMPONENTS:
Depreciation $ (20,691) $ (10,127)
State income taxes 549 468

Inventory cost capitalization 1,992 2,189

Reserve for store expansion/relocation and closing costs 2,866 1,745

Deferred rent 4,712 4,198

Deferred compensation 6,275 2,817

Other 992 670

$ (3,305) $ 1,960

NOTE 7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating Leases — The Company leases its retail stores, former corporate offices and distribution facilities, and certain equipment
under operating lease agreements expiring at various dates through December 2 0 1 6. Substantially all of the leases require the Company
to pay maintenance, insurance, property taxes and percentage rent ranging from 5% to 7% based on sales volumes exceeding certain
minimum sales levels.

Minimum future annual rental commitments under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows:

FISCAL YEAR ENDING:

January 29, 2005 $ 81,091

January 28, 2006 82,291

February 3, 2007 81,970

February 2, 2008 81,978

February 1, 2009 75,867

Thereafter 212,627

$ 615,824

Rental expense, including common area maintenance, was $129,269, $117,847 and $91,480, of which $4,608, $2,151 and $1,062

was paid as percentage rent based on sales volume for fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.



Capital Leases — During each of fiscal 2002, 2001 and the fiscal year ended February 4, 2001 (“fiscal 2000”), the Company acquired
computer equipment pursuant to capital lease obligations. The leases bear interest at average rates of 3.8 %, 6.0 % and 6.6 %, respectively;
require monthly principal and interest payments of $ 90, $ 2 2 and $ 5 1, respectively; and expire at various dates through March 2 0 06. Th e
net book value of capital lease assets was $ 3,3 1 8 and $ 4,3 56, respectively, at January 3 1, 2 0 04, and February 1, 2 0 0 3. Future commitments
under capital lease obligations are as follows:

FISCAL YEAR ENDING:

January 29, 2005 $ 1,077

January 28, 2006 1,076

February 3, 2007 179

Total payments, including interest 2,332

Less interest portion (97)

Total principal payments remaining at January 31, 2004 $ 2,235

Current portion of capital lease obligations from balance sheet $ 1,008

Long-term portion of capital lease obligations from balance sheet 1,227

Total capital lease obligations outstanding at January 31, 2004 $ 2,235

Letters of Credit — The Company was contingently liable for $ 1 3.1 million in open letters of credit with foreign suppliers at 
January 3 1, 2 0 04.

Other Long-Term Debt Obligations — During fiscal 2002, the Company purchased a three-year computer maintenance agreement
under a long-term debt obligation for $2,413. The debt obligation bears interest at 6.2% and requires quarterly principal and interest
payments of $231 through March 2005. Future commitments under this long-term debt obligation are as follows:

FISCAL YEAR ENDING:

January 29, 2005 $ 927

January 28, 2006 231

Total payments, including interest 1,158

Less interest portion (52)

Total principal payments remaining at January 31, 2004 $ 1,106

Current portion of long-term debt from balance sheet $ 878

Long-term portion of long-term debt from balance sheet 228

Total long-term debt outstanding at January 31, 2004 $ 1,106

Litigation — During fiscal 2003, the Company reached an agreement to settle all claims related to two lawsuits concerning overtime pay
for a total of $ 4.0 million. The Company had accrued $ 4.0 million and $ 3.9 million related to these matters at the end of fiscal 2 0 0 3 a n d
fiscal 2002, respectively. The suits are Auden v. Pacific Sunwear of California, Inc., which was filed September 17, 2001, and Adams v.
Pacific Sunwear of California, Inc., which was filed August 2, 2 0 0 2. The complaints alleged that the Company improperly classified certa i n
California-based employees as “exempt” from overtime pay. In February 2004, the Company made a payment of $3.1 million on the
aggregate settlement amount with the remaining amounts expected to be paid in the first half of fiscal 2004. The settlement did not
have a material impact on results of operations for fiscal 2003.

The Company is involved from time to time in litigation incidental to its business. Management believes that the outcome of current
litigation will not have a material adverse effect upon the results of operations or financial condition of the Company.

Indemnities, Commitments, and Guarantees — During its normal course of business, the Company has made certain indemnities,
c o mmitments and guarantees under which it may be required to make payments in relation to certain transactions. These indemnities
include those given to various lessors in connection with facility leases for certain claims arising from such facility or lease and indemnities
to directors and officers of the Company to the maximum extent permitted under the laws of the State of California. The Company has
issued guarantees in the form of standby letters of credit as security for merchandise shipments from overseas. There were $ 1 3.1 m i l l i o n
of these letters of credit outstanding at January 31, 2004. The Company has also issued a guarantee within a sublease on one of its
store locations under which the Company remains secondarily liable on the sublease should the sublessee default on its lease payments.
The term of the sublease ends December 3 1, 2 0 1 4. The Company has recorded $.5 million in accrued liabilities to recognize the estimated
fair value of this guarantee, assuming that another sublessee would be found within one year should the original sublessee default. The
aggregate rental payments remaining on the master lease agreement at January 31, 2004, were $6.0 million. The duration of these
indemnities, commitments and guarantees varies, and in certain cases, is indefinite. The majority of these indemnities, commitments
and guarantees do not provide for any limitation of the maximum potential future payments the Company could be obligated to make.
The Company has not recorded any liability for these indemnities, commitments and guarantees in the accompanying consolidated
b a lance sheets other than as noted.
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The Company maintains a private label credit card through a third party to promote the PacSun brand image and lifestyle. The third
party services the customer accounts and retains all risk and financial obligation associated with any outstanding balances on customer
accounts. The Company has no financial obligation and does not provide any guarantee related to any outstanding balances resulting
from the use of these private label credit cards by its customers.

Sublease Loss Charges — The Company remains liable under two operating leases covering its former corporate offices and a former
store location. These facilities remain vacant at January 31, 2004. At the end of fiscal 2002, the Company had accrued $3.6 million to
account for the difference between the Company’s remaining contractual lease obligations and the rate and timeframe within which the
Company expected to be able to sublease these properties. During fiscal 2003, based on a review of real estate market conditions and
on-going negotiations, management of the Company revised its sublease assumptions and increased its accrued sublease loss ch a r g e s
by $ 1.9 million to a total of $ 5.5 million. To the extent management’s estimates relating to the Company’s ability to sublease these facilities
at the assumed rates or within the assumed timeframes changes or is incorrect, additional charges or reversals of previous charges may
be recorded in the future. At January 31, 2004, the aggregate remaining obligations under these leases were approximately $5.4 million
for the former corporate offices and approximately $ 6.7 million for the former store location. These amounts are included in the minimum
future rental commitments table above within this Note 7.

NOTE 8. COMMON STOCK

Stock Split — On August 25, 2003, the Company effected a three-for-two stock split. Shareholders’ equity was restated to give
retroactive recognition to the stock split in prior periods by reclassifying the par value ($247) of the additional shares arising from the
split from additional paid-in capital to common stock. Additionally, all share and per share amounts were restated to give effect to the
stock split in prior periods.

Common Stock Purchase and Retirement — On January 27, 2 0 04, the Board of Directors of the Company adopted a resolution authorizing
the Company to purchase up to 2.5 million shares of the Company’s common stock in open market transactions. As of January 3 1, 2 0 04,
no pur chases had been made pursuant to the resolution. Subsequent to January 3 1, 2 0 04, the Company repurchased shares as follows:

# of Shares Purchased Maximum # of Shares that
# of Shares Average as Part of Publicly May Yet be Purchased

Period Purchased Price/Share Announced Plan Under the Plan

February 23, 2004 75,000 $ 23.99 75,000 2,425,000

Shareholder Rights Plan — In December 1998, the Board of Directors approved the adoption of a Shareholder Rights Plan (“the Rights
Plan”). The Rights Plan provides for the distribution to the Company’s shareholders of one preferred stock purchase “Right” for each
o u t s tanding share of the Company’s common stock. The Rights have an exercise price of $ 7 5 per Right, subject to subsequent
a d j u s t m e n t. Initially, the Rights will trade with the Company’s common stock, and will not be exercisable until the occurrence of certain
takeover-related events, as defined. The Rights Plan provides that if a person or group acquires more than 1 5 % of the Company’s stock
without prior approval of the Board of Directors, holders of the Rights will be entitled to purchase the Company’s stock at half of market
value. The Rights Plan also provides that if the Company is acquired in a merger or other business combination after a person or group
acquires more than 15% of the Company’s stock without prior approval of the Board of Directors, holders of the Rights will be entitled
to purchase the acquirer’s stock at half of market value. The Rights were distributed to holders of the Company’s common stock of
record on December 29, 1998, as a dividend, and will expire, unless earlier redeemed, on December 29, 2008.

NOTE 9. STOCK OPTION AND RETIREMENT PLANS

Under the Company’s stock option plans, incentive and nonqualified options have been granted to employees and directors to purch a se
common stock at prices equal to the fair value of the Company’s shares at the grant dates.

At January 3 1, 2 0 04, outstanding incentive and nonqualified options had exercise prices ranging from $.68 to $ 2 3.97 per share,
with an average exercise price of $10.47 per share, and generally begin vesting one year after the grant date. On the initial vesting
date, 25% of the options vest and, thereafter, options generally continue to vest at 2.08% each calendar month. The options generally
expire ten years from the date of grant or 90 days after employment or services are terminated.

At January 31, 2004, incentive and nonqualified options to purchase 5,473,087 shares were outstanding and 4,066,804 shares were
available for future grant under the Company’s stock option plans. During fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company recognized tax
benefits of $15,810, $1,038 and $2,708, respectively, resulting from the exercise of certain nonqualified stock options. 



Stock option (incentive and nonqualified) activity for each of the three fiscal years ended January 31, 2004, was as follows:

Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2002 Fiscal 2001

Beginning options outstanding 8,691,197 7,198,026 6,194,601

Options granted 1,101,351 2,289,238 2,458,125

Options canceled (254,921) (354,282) (775,543)
Options exercised (4,064,540) (441,785) (679,157)

Ending options outstanding 5,473,087 8,691,197 7,198,026

Ending options exercisable 2,272,058 4,576,850 3,488,505

Beginning weighted average exercise price $ 8.56 $ 7.98 $ 7.79

Options granted 13.92 10.23 8.54

Options canceled 10.65 9.91 10.38

Options exercised 7.31 6.68 5.50

Ending weighted average exercise price $ 10.47 $ 8.56 $ 7.98

Ending weighted average exercise price of exercisable options $ 9.68 $ 7.59 $ 6.89

Weighted average fair value of options granted during the fiscal year $ 5.27 $ 5.09 $ 5.24

Additional information regarding options outstanding as of January 31, 2004, is as follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable 

Number Weighted Average Weighted Number
Range of Outstanding as of Remaining Average Exercisable as of Weighted Average 

Exercise Prices Jan. 31, 200 4 Contractual Life Exercise Price Jan. 31, 2004 Exercise Price 

$ 0.68 - $ 8.92 1,446,270 6.30 $ 7.13 677,332 $ 6.65

9.00 - 10.58 1,561,297 6.88 9.76 858,443 9.95

10.61 - 12.50 1,821,621 8.39 12.03 535,133 11.56

12.67 - 23.97 643,899 8.08 15.31 201,150 13.71

$ 0.68 - $ 23.97 5,473,087 7.37 $ 10.47 2,272,058 $ 9.68

During the year ended February 1, 1998, the Company granted a restricted stock award of 427,141 shares with a purchase price of
$0.01 per share to its Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”). The award vested 25% on each of March 31, 1999, 2000, 2001 and 2002, as,
in each instance, certain cumulative earnings per share growth targets had been satisfied. The Company recorded $40 and $240 of
deferred compensation expense for this award during fiscal 2002 and 2001, respectively.

During the year ended January 30, 2000, the Company granted a restricted stock award of 112,500 shares with a purchase price of
$0.01 per share to its C EO. The award is scheduled to vest 25% on each of September 17, 2001, 2002, 2003 and 2004, if, in each
instance, certain cumulative annual earnings per share growth targets have been satisfied. Under the award agreement, shares that do
not vest at a given vesting date due to the cumulative annual earnings per share growth targets not being met remain available for
future vesting if the cumulative annual earnings per share growth targets are met as of a subsequent vesting date. During fiscal 2003,
the Company recorded compensation expense of $2.3 million to recognize the cumulative vested value of the award as of January 31,
2004. This expense accrual is included in accrued liabilities (see Note 5) on the balance sheet. The Company will be required to adjust
compensation expense related to this award in future quarters based on additional vesting of the shares and changes in the market
price of the Company’s stock. For example, based on the closing market price of the Company’s stock at January 31, 2004 of $23.05,
the Company would be required to record additional compensation expense of approximately $.1 million per quarter based on additional
vesting of the shares until September 17, 2004. Additionally, based on any change in the market price of the Company’s stock in future
quarters, the cumulative compensation expense recognized for this award will continue to be adjusted for any shares not yet delivered
to the CEO. The CEO became immediately vested in and received 75% of the total share award, or 84,375 shares, in March 2004.
The remaining 25%, or 28,125 shares, will vest and be received by the CEO in September 2004.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR  THE FI SCAL  YE ARS ENDE D JANUARY 31 ,  2004 ,  FEBRUARY 1 ,  2003,  A ND FE BRUARY 2,  2002

(ALL AMOUNT S IN  T HOUSA NDS , EXCE PT SHARE  AND PER  S HA RE AMOUNT S,  UN LESS OTHER WI SE INDICATED)

42  PACSUN ANNUAL REPORT 03  



ANNUAL REPORT 03 PACSUN 43

During the year ended February 4, 2001, the Company granted a restricted stock award of 168,750 shares with a purchase price of
$0.01 per share to its Chief Executive Officer. The award is scheduled to vest 25% on each of March 15, 2002, 2003, 2004 and 2005,
if, in each instance, certain cumulative annual earnings per share growth targets have been satisfied. Under the award agreement,
shares that do not vest at a given vesting date due to the cumulative annual earnings per share growth targets not being met remain
available for future vesting if the cumulative annual earnings per share growth targets are met as of a subsequent vesting date. During
fiscal 2003, the Company recorded compensation expense of $2.8 million to recognize the cumulative vested value of the award as of
January 31, 2004. This expense accrual is included in accrued liabilities (see Note 5) on the balance sheet. The Company will be
required to adjust compensation expense related to this award in future quarters based on additional vesting of the shares and
changes in the market price of the Company’s stock. For example, based on the market price of the Company’s stock at January 31,
2004 of $23.05, the Company would be required to record additional compensation expense of approximately $.2 million per quarter
based on additional vesting of the shares until March 15, 2005. Additionally, based on any change in the market price of the
Company’s stock in future quarters, the cumulative compensation expense recognized for this award will continue to be adjusted for
any shares not yet delivered to the CEO. The CEO became immediately vested in and received 75% of the total share award, or
1 2 6,56 3 shares, in March 2 0 04. The remaining 2 5 %, or 4 2,1 87 shares, will vest and be received by the CEO in March 2 0 0 5 u p o n
c o nfirmation by the Board of Directors that the fiscal 2004 cumulative earnings per share growth target has been met by the Company.

The Company accounts for its stock-based awards issued to employees using the intrinsic value method in accordance with APB
Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and its related interpretations. Accordingly, no compensation expense
has been recognized in the financial statements for employee stock arrangements, other than described above.

The Company maintains an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”), which provides a method for Company employees to
volu n ta r ily purchase Company common stock at a 1 0 % discount from fair market value as of the beginning or the end of each six-month
purchasing period, whichever is lower. The ESPP covers substantially all employees, except officers, who have three months of service
with the Company. The ESPP is intended to constitute an “employee stock purchase plan” within the meaning of Section 423 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and therefore the Company does not recognize compensation expense related to the
ESPP. In fiscal 2003 and 2002, 55,293 and 59,091 shares were issued at an average price of $12.46 and $8.36, respectively, under
the ESPP.

The Company also maintains an Employee Savings Plan (the “401(k) Plan”). The 401(k) Plan is a defined contribution plan covering
substantially all employees who have reached age 21 and have one year of service with the Company. The 401(k) Plan is funded by
employee contributions and periodic Company discretionary contributions, which are subject to approval by the Company’s Board of
Directors. For fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company made contributions, net of forfeitures, of $516, $328 and $364, respectively,
to the 401(k) Plan.

NOTE 10. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2004:
Net sales $ 198,331 $ 234,392 $ 281,253 $ 326,318

Gross margin 63,855 79,834 100,617 119,011

Operating income 12,893 21,654 39,259 54,442

Net income 7,979 13,380 24,509 34,346

Net income per share, basic $ 0.11 $ 0.18 $ 0.32 $ 0.44

Net income per share, diluted $ 0.10 $ 0.17 $ 0.31 $ 0.43

Wtd. avg. shares outstanding, basic (NOTE 1) 74,524,548 75,885,641 77,685,516 78,287,219

Wtd. avg. shares outstanding, diluted (NOTE 1) 76,472,511 78,104,037 79,876,426 80,226,072

FISCAL YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 1, 2003:
Net sales $ 161,710 $ 190,854 $ 228,239 $ 265,590

Gross margin 49,166 60,605 78,915 94,997

Operating income 5,453 12,151 25,956 37,677

Net income 3,269 7,296 15,902 23,209

Net income per share, basic $ 0.04 $ 0.10 $ 0.22 $ 0.31

Net income per share, diluted $ 0.04 $ 0.10 $ 0.21 $ 0.31

Wtd. avg. shares outstanding, basic (NOTE 1) 73,795,705 73,886,061 73,955,606 74,088,657

Wtd. avg. shares outstanding, diluted (NOTE 1) 75,176,161 74,766,990 74,923,747 75,765,821

Earnings per basic and diluted share are computed independently for each of the quarters presented based on diluted shares out-
standing per quarter and, therefore, may not sum to the totals for the year. Additionally, the sum of the four quarterly amounts for any
line item may not agree to the fiscal year total in the consolidated financial statements due to rounding.



The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto of the Company
included elsewhere in this annual report. The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. The Company’s actual results could differ
m a t e r i a l l y from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors, including those set forth under
“Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors” in this section.

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

Management of the Company considers the following items to be key performance indicators in evaluating Company performance:

Comparable (or “same store”) sales – Stores are deemed comparable stores on the first day of the month following the one-year
a n n i v e r sary of their opening or expansion/relocation. Management of the Company considers same store sales to be an important indicator
of current Company performance. Same store sales results are important in achieving operating leverage of certain expenses such as
store payroll, store occupancy, depreciation, general and administrative expenses, and other costs that are somewhat fixed. Positive
same store sales results generate greater operating leverage of expenses while negative same store sales results negatively impact
operating leverage. Same store sales results also have a direct impact on the Company’s total net sales, cash, and working capital. 

Net merchandise margins – Management analyzes the components of net merchandise margins, specifically initial markup and markdowns
as a percentage of net sales. Any inability to obtain acceptable levels of initial markups or any significant increase in the Company’s
use of markdowns could have an adverse impact on the Company’s gross margin results and results of operations.

Operating margin – Management views operating margin as a key indicator of the Company’s success. The key drivers of operating
margins are comparable store net sales, net merchandise margins, and the Company’s ability to control operating expenses. Operating
margin for fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, was 12.3%, 9.6% and 6.5%, respectively. The Company’s highest historical operating margin
was 1 2.9 % for fiscal 1 999. 

Store sales trends – Management evaluates store sales trends in assessing the operational performance of the Company’s store
expansion strategies. Important store sales trends include average net sales per store, average net sales per square foot, and average
trend sales for new stores. Average net sales per store (in thousands) for fiscal 2 0 0 3, 2 0 0 2 and 2 0 0 1 were $ 1,2 2 9, $ 1,1 0 2 and $ 1,0 3 1,
respectively. Average net sales per square foot were $363, $330 and $321, respectively.

Cash flow and liquidity (working capital) – Management evaluates cash flow from operations, liquidity and working capital to determine
the Company’s short-term operational financing needs. Cash flows from operations were significantly higher in fiscal 2 0 0 3 as compared
to fiscal 2002, primarily due to higher net income driven by the 13.1% comparable store net sales increase in fiscal 2003. Management
expects cash flows from operations will be sufficient to finance operations without borrowing under the Company’s credit facility.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America necessarily requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements as well as the reported revenues and expenses
during the reported period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. The accounting policies that the Company believes are the
most critical to aid in fully understanding and evaluating reported financial results include the following:

Revenue Recognition – Sales are recognized upon purchase by customers at the Company’s retail store locations or upon shipment for
orders placed through the Company’s website. The Company records the sale of gift cards as a current liability and recognizes a sa l e w h e n
a customer redeems a gift card. The amount of the gift card liability is determined taking into account the Company’s estimate of the
portion of gift cards that will not be redeemed or recovered. The Company accrues for estimated sales returns by customers based on
historical sales return results. Actual return rates have historically been within management’s expectations and the reserves established.
However, in the event that the actual rate of sales returns by customers increased significantly, the Company’s operational results could
be adversely affected. The Company accrued $.6 million at the end of fiscal 2 0 0 3 for estimated sales returns by customers based on
historical sales return results.

Inventory Valuation – Merchandise inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market. Cost is determined
using the retail inventory method. At any one time, inventories include items that have been marked down to management’s best estimate
of their fair market value. Management bases the decision to mark down merchandise primarily upon its current rate of sale and the
age of the item, among other factors. To the extent that management estimates differ from actual results, additional markdowns may
have to be recorded, which could reduce the Company’s gross margins and operating results.

Long-Lived Assets – In the normal course of business, the Company acquires tangible and intangible assets. The Company periodically
evaluates the recoverability of the carrying amount of its long-lived assets (including property, plant and equipment, and other inta n g i b l e
assets) whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be fully recoverable. Impairment
is assessed when the undiscounted expected future cash flows derived from an asset or asset group are less than its carrying amount.
Impairments are recognized in operating earnings. The Company uses its best judgment based on the most current facts and circumsta n c es
surrounding its business when applying these impairment rules to determine the timing of the impairment test, the undiscounted cash
flows used to assess impairments, and the fair value of a potentially impaired asset. Changes in assumptions used could have a significant
impact on the Company’s assessment of recoverability. Numerous factors, including changes in the Company’s business, industry segment,
and the global economy, could significantly impact management’s decision to retain, dispose of, or idle certain of its long-lived assets.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets – The Company evaluates the recoverability of goodwill at least annually based on a two-step
impairment test. The first step compares the fair value of each reporting unit with its carrying amount, including goodwill. If the carrying
amount of a reporting unit exceeds fair value, then the second step of the impairment test is performed to measure the amount of any
impairment loss. Fair value is determined based on estimated future cash flows, discounted at a rate that approximates the Company’s
cost of capital. Such estimates are subject to change and the Company may be required to recognize impairment losses in the future.

Insurance Reserves – The Company is responsible for workers’ compensation insurance claims up to a specified aggregate stop loss
amount. The Company maintains a reserve for estimated claims, both reported and incurred but not reported, based on historical claims
experience and other estimated assumptions. Actual claims activity has historically been within management’s expectations and the
reserves established. To the extent claims experience or management’s estimates change, additional charges may be recorded in the
future up to the aggregate stop loss amount for each policy year.

Accrued Sublease Loss Charges – The Company remains liable under two operating leases covering its former corporate offices and
a former store location. These facilities remain vacant as of the date of this filing. At the end of fiscal 2002, the Company had accrued
$3.6 million to account for the difference between the Company’s remaining contractual lease obligations and the rate and timeframe
within which the Company expected to be able to sublease these properties. During fiscal 2 0 0 3, based on a review of real estate market
conditions and on-going negotiations, the Company revised its sublease assumptions and increased its accrued sublease loss charges by
$1.9 million to a total of $5.5 million. To the extent management’s estimates relating to the Company’s ability to sublease these facilities
at the assumed rates or within the assumed timeframes changes or is incorrect, additional charges or reversals of previous charges
may be recorded in the future. At January 31, 2004, the aggregate remaining obligations under these leases were approximately $5.4
million for the former corporate offices and approximately $6.7 million for the former store location. These amounts are included in the
contractual obligations table on page 50.

Income Taxes – Current income tax expense is the amount of income taxes expected to be payable for the current year. The combined
federal and state income tax expense was calculated using estimated effective annual tax rates. A deferred income tax asset or liability is
e s tablished for the expected future consequences of temporary differences in the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities.
The Company considers future taxable income and ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning in assessing the value of its deferred tax
assets. Evaluating the value of these assets is necessarily based on the Company’s judgment. If the Company determines that it is more
likely than not that these assets will not be realized, the Company would reduce the value of these assets to their expected realizable
value through a valuation allowance, thereby decreasing net income. If the Company subsequently determined that the deferred tax
assets, which had been written down, would be realized in the future, the value of the deferred tax assets would be increased, thereby
increasing net income in the period when that determination was made.

Litigation – The Company is involved from time to time in litigation incidental to its business. Management believes that the outcome of
current litigation will not have a material adverse effect upon the results of operations or financial condition of the Company and, from
time to time, may make provisions for potential litigation losses. Depending on the actual outcome of pending litigation, charges in
excess of any provisions could be recorded in the future, which may have an adverse effect on the Company’s operating results (see
Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements).

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth selected income statement data of the Company expressed as a percentage of net sales for the fiscal
years indicated. The discussion that follows should be read in conjunction with the following table:

As a Percentage of Net Sales

January 31, February 1, February 2,
FISCAL YEAR ENDED 2004 2003 2002

Net sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Cost of goods sold (including buying, distribution and occupancy costs) 65.1 66.5 67.8

Gross margin 34.9 33.5 32.2
Selling, general and administrative expenses 22.6 23.9 25.7

Operating income 12.3 9.6 6.5
Interest income/(expense), net 0.1 (0.1) 0.1

Income before income tax expense 12.4 9.5 6.6
Income tax expense 4.7 3.6 2.6

Net income 7.7% 5.9% 4.0%

Number of stores open at end of period 877 791 718



FISCAL 2003 COMPARED TO FISCAL 2002

NET SALES

Net sales increased to $ 1.04 billion in fiscal 2 0 0 3 from $ 846.4 million in fiscal 2 0 0 2, an increase of $ 1 9 3.9 million, or 2 2.9 %. Th e
c o mponents of this $193.9 million increase in net sales are as follows:

Amount Attributable to

$ 104.3 million 13.1% increase in comparable store net sales in fiscal 2003 compared to fiscal 2002

49.2 million 90 new stores opened in fiscal 2003 not yet included in the comparable store base

25.1 million Net sales from stores opened in fiscal 2002 while not yet included in the comparable store base

20.0 million Other non-comparable sales (net sales from expanded or relocated stores not yet included in the 
comparable store base and internet net sales)

(4.7) million 4 closed stores in fiscal 2003 and 12 closed stores in fiscal 2002

$ 193.9 million Total

Of the 1 3.1 % increase in comparable store net sales in fiscal 2 0 0 3, PacSun and PacSun Outlet comparable store net sales increased
a combined 1 2.3 % and d.e.m.o. comparable store net sales increased 2 1.0 %. The increase in comparable store net sales within PacSun
and PacSun Outlet was primarily attributable to increases in comparable store net sales of footwear, accessories, juniors and, to a lesser
extent, young men’s merchandise. The increase in comparable store net sales within d.e.m.o. was primarily attributable to increases in
comparable store net sales of juniors, accessories, footwear and, to a lesser extent, young men’s merchandise. Average retail prices of
merchandise sold remained relatively unchanged in fiscal 2003 compared to fiscal 2002 and had no significant impact on the net sales
increase for fiscal 2003.

GROSS MARGIN

Gross margin, after buying, distribution and occupancy costs, increased to $ 36 3.3 million in fiscal 2 0 0 3 from $ 2 8 3.7 million in fiscal 2 0 0 2,
an increase of $79.6 million, or 28.1%. As a percentage of net sales, gross margin was 34.9% for fiscal 2003 compared to 33.5% for
fiscal 2002. The components of this 1.4% increase in gross margin as a percentage of net sales are as follows:

Percentage Attributable to

1.4 % Decrease in occupancy costs, primarily due to leveraging these costs over higher total sales

.1 % Increase in net merchandise margins, primarily due to a higher initial markup rate partially offset by 
a higher markdown rate

.1 % Decrease in distribution costs

(.2) % Increase in buying costs

1.4 % Total

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased to $235.1 million in fiscal 2003 from $202.4 million in fiscal 2002, an increase
of $ 3 2.7 million, or 1 6.2 %. As a percentage of net sales, these expenses decreased to 2 2.6 % from 2 3.9 %. The components of this 1.3 %

net decrease as a percentage of net sales are as follows:

Percentage Attributable to

1.1 % Decrease in store payroll, primarily due to leveraging these costs over higher total sales

.7 % Decrease in other store expenses due to leveraging these costs over higher total sales

.2 % Decrease in store closing, expansion and relocation expenses

(.7) % Increase in general and administrative expenses, primarily due to $5.1 million restricted stock
expense (see note 9 to the consolidated financial statements)

1.3 % Total

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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NET INTEREST INCOME/EXPENSE

Net interest income was $.7 million in fiscal 2 0 0 3 compared to net interest expense of $.6 million in fiscal 2 0 0 2, an increase of $ 1.3 m i l l i o n
in net interest income. This increase was primarily the result of higher average cash balances in fiscal 2003. Average cash balances
were higher in fiscal 2003 primarily due to higher net income driven by the comparable store net sales increase in fiscal 2003 as well
as the absence of the construction loan related to the Company’s new corporate offices and distribution center that was outstanding
for a portion of fiscal 2002.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense was $48.8 million in fiscal 2003 compared to $31.0 million in fiscal 2002. The effective income tax rate was 37.8%

in fiscal 2 0 0 3 and 38.4 % in fiscal 2 0 0 2. The lower effective income tax rate for fiscal 2 0 0 3 was primarily attributable to a lower weighted
effective state income tax rate for the Company. The weighted effective state income tax rate of the Company will vary depending on a
number of factors, such as differing income tax rates and net sales by state.

FISCAL 2002 COMPARED TO FISCAL 2001

NETSALES

Net sales increased to $846.4 million in fiscal 2002 from $684.8 million in fiscal 2001, an increase of $161.6 million, or 23.6%. The
components of this $161.6 million increase in net sales are as follows:

Amount Attributable to

$ 61.0 million 9.7% increase in comparable store net sales in fiscal 2002 compared to fiscal 2001

50.6 million 85 new stores opened in fiscal 2002 not yet included in the comparable store base

40.9 million Net sales from stores opened in fiscal 2001 while not yet included in the comparable store base

13.7 million Other non-comparable sales (net sales from expanded or relocated stores not yet included in the 
comparable store base and internet net sales)

1.4 million Additional shopping day in fiscal 2002 due to the one day change in fiscal year end from Sunday 
to Saturday at the end of fiscal 2001

(6.0) million 12 closed stores in fiscal 2002 and 6 closed stores in fiscal 2001

$ 161.6 million Total

Of the 9.7 % increase in comparable store net sales in fiscal 2 0 0 2, PacSun and PacSun Outlet comparable store net sales increased
9.4 % and d.e.m.o. comparable store net sales increased 1 2.4 %. The increase in comparable store net sales within PacSun and PacSun
Outlet was primarily attributable to increases in comparable store net sales of footwear, juniors, and accessories. The increase in
c o mparable store net sales within d.e.m.o. was primarily attributable to increases in comparable store net sales of juniors and accessories
merchandise. Average retail prices of merchandise sold remained relatively unchanged in fiscal 2002 compared to fiscal 2001 and had
no significant impact on the net sales increase for fiscal 2002.

GROSS MARGIN

Gross margin, after buying, distribution and occupancy costs, increased to $ 2 8 3.7 million in fiscal 2 0 0 2 from $ 2 2 0.2 million in fiscal 2 0 0 1,
an increase of $63.5 million, or 28.8%. As a percentage of net sales, gross margin was 33.5% for fiscal 2002 compared to 32.2% for
fiscal 2001. The components of this 1.3% increase in gross margin are as follows:

Percentage Attributable to

.4 % Decrease in occupancy costs, primarily due to leveraging these costs over higher total sales

.4 % Decrease in buying costs, primarily due to leveraging these costs over higher total sales

.3 % Decrease in distribution costs, primarily due to freight and labor efficiencies in the new distribution 
center as well as leveraging these costs over higher total sales

.2 % Increase in net merchandise margins, primarily due to a higher initial markup rate partially offset by 
a higher markdown rate

1.3 % Total



SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased to $202.4 million in fiscal 2002 from $175.9 million in fiscal 2001, an increase of
$26.5 million, or 15.1%. As a percentage of net sales, these expenses decreased to 23.9% from 25.7%. The components of this 1.8%

net decrease as a percentage of net sales are as follows:

Percentage Attributable to

.8 % Decrease in advertising expenses, primarily due to the elimination of television advertising and a 
sports game sponsorship

.6 % Decrease in store closing, expansion and relocation expenses

.4 % Decrease in store payroll, primarily due to leveraging these costs over higher total sales

1.8 % Total

Selling, general and administrative expenses include provisions made by the Company for the wage and hour litigation (see Note 7
to the consolidated financial statements). These amounts are included in store payroll.

NET INTEREST EXPENSE/INCOME

Net interest expense was $.6 million in fiscal 2002 compared to interest income of $.5 million in fiscal 2001, a decrease of $1.1 million.
This decrease was primarily the result of interest expense arising from a construction loan related to the construction of the Company’s
new corporate offices and distribution center in fiscal 2002 as well as lower average cash balances during fiscal 2002 as compared to
fiscal 2001.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense was $ 3 1.0 million in fiscal 2 0 0 2 compared to $ 17.2 million in fiscal 2 0 0 1. The effective income tax rate in fiscal 2 0 0 2

and fiscal 2001 was 38.4%.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company has financed its operations primarily from internally generated cash flow, with occasional short-term and long-term
b o rrowings and equity financing in past years. The Company’s primary capital requirements have been for the construction of new
stores, remodeling, expansion, or relocation of selected stores, financing of inventories and, in fiscal 2 0 0 1, construction of the Company’s
new corporate offices and distribution center. Management believes that the Company’s working capital, cash flows from operating
activities and credit facility will be sufficient to meet the Company’s operating and capital expenditure requirements for fiscal 2004.

OPERATING CASH FLOWS

Net cash provided by operating activities for fiscal 2 0 0 3, fiscal 2 0 0 2 and fiscal 2 0 0 1 was $ 1 5 1.6 million, $ 76.6 million and $ 58.4 m i l l i o n ,
respectively. The $75.0 million increase in cash provided by operations in fiscal 2003 as compared to fiscal 2002 was attributable to
the following:

Amount Attributable to

$ 30.5 million Increase in net income

24.9 million Increase in accrued income taxes and deferred income taxes

15.9 million Increase in accounts payable leverage compared to fiscal 2002 (1)

3.7 million Other items netting to a cash flow increase

$ 75.0 million Total

(1) Accounts payable as a percentage of inventories increased to 26.2% at January 31, 2004, as compared to 23.1% at February 1, 2003, primarily due to timing
of payments.

The Company’s success is largely dependent upon its ability to gauge the fashion tastes of its customers and provide merchandise
that satisfies customer demand. Any inability to provide appropriate merchandise in sufficient quantities in a timely manner could have
a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, operating results, cash flows from operations and financial condition. Any economic
downturn that affects the retail industry as a whole could also adversely affect the Company’s business, operating results, cash flows
from operations and financial condition.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
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WORKING CAPITAL

Working capital at the end of fiscal 2003, fiscal 2002 and fiscal 2001 was $243.0 million, $109.3 million and $78.9 million, respectively.
The $133.7 million increase in working capital at January 31, 2004 as compared to February 1, 2003 was attributable to the following:

Amount Attributable to

$ 139.4 million Increase in cash and short-term investments, primarily due to higher net income driven by the 
13.1% comparable store net sales increase for fiscal 2003

14.1 million Increase in inventories, net of accounts payable, primarily due to square footage growth of 13%,
as well as inventory increases in comparable stores

.6 million Other items netting to a working capital increase

(20.4) million Increase in accrued liabilities, primarily due to increased accruals for restricted stock expenses, 
sales taxes, capital expenditures for stores not yet open, bonus expense and store closing expenses

$ 133.7 million Total

INVESTING CASH FLOWS

Net cash used in investing activities in fiscal 2003, fiscal 2002 and fiscal 2001 was $73.2 million, $40.4 million and $92.9 million,
respectively. The components of the $73.2 million of net cash used in investing activities in fiscal 2003 are as follows:

Amount Attributable to

$ 33.0 million Purchases of short-term investments classified as held-to-maturity

22.9 million Capital expenditures for 90 new stores and 27 expansions/relocations in fiscal 2003

8.5 million Construction costs of new, expanded and relocated stores to open in fiscal 2004

2.4 million Maintenance capital expenditures on existing stores

6.4 million Other capital expenditures, including computer hardware and software

$ 73.2 million Total

In fiscal 2004, capital expenditures are expected to be approximately $56 million, of which approximately $48 million will be for
opening new and relocated/expanded stores, and approximately $ 8 million will be used for other capital expenditures, including
m a i ntenance capital on existing stores and computer hardware and software.

On January 27, 2004, the Board of Directors of the Company adopted a resolution authorizing the Company to purchase up to 2.5
million shares of the Company’s common stock in open market transactions. As of January 31, 2004, no purchases had been made
pursuant to the resolution. Subsequent to January 31, 2004, the Company repurchased shares as follows:

# of Shares Purchased Maximum # of Shares that
# of Shares Average as Part of Publicly May Yet be Purchased

Period Purchased Price/Share Announced Plan Under the Plan

February 23, 2004 75,000 $ 23.99 75,000 2,425,000

FINANCING CASH FLOWS

Net cash provided by financing activities in fiscal 2003 was $28.0 million as compared to cash used of $22.9 million in fiscal 2002 and
cash provided of $28.7 million in fiscal 2001, respectively. Of the $28.0 million of net cash provided by financing activities in fiscal
2003, $30.4 million was due to proceeds received from the exercise of stock options, offset by principal payments under capital lease
and long-term debt obligations of $2.4 million. 

The Company has a credit facility with a bank, which expires April 1, 2 0 07. The credit facility provides for a $ 4 5.0 million line of credit
(the “Credit Line”) through March 31, 2005 to be used for cash advances, commercial letters of credit and shipside bonds. The Credit
Line increases to $50.0 million from April 1, 2005 through March 31, 2006, and $60.0 million from April 1, 2006 through expiration on
April 1, 2007. Interest on the Credit Line is payable monthly at the bank’s prime rate (4.0% at January 31, 2004) or at optional interest
rates that are primarily dependent upon the London Inter-bank Offered Rates for the time period chosen. The Company did not borrow
under the credit facility at any time during fiscal 2 0 0 3. The Company had $ 1 3.1 million outstanding in letters of credit at January 3 1, 2 0 04.
The credit facility subjects the Company to various restrictive covenants, including maintenance of certain financial ratios, and prohibits
payment of cash dividends on common stock. At January 31, 2004, the Company was in compliance with all of the covenants.

A significant decrease in the Company’s operating results could adversely affect the Company’s ability to maintain the required financial
ratios under the Company’s credit facility. Required financial ratios include total liabilities to tangible net worth, limitations on capital
expenditures and achievement of certain rolling four-quarter EBITDA requirements. If these financial ratios are not maintained, the bank
will have the option to require immediate repayment of all amounts outstanding under the credit facility, if any. The most likely result
would require the Company to renegotiate certain terms of the credit agreement, obtain a waiver from the bank, or obtain a new credit
agreement with another bank, which may contain different terms. At January 31, 2004, the Company had no borrowings outstanding
under its credit facility.



CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The Company has minimum annual rental commitments under existing store leases, the lease for its former corporate offices and
d i s t r ibution center, capital leases for computer equipment, and other long-term debt obligations for multi-year computer maintenance
contracts. The Company’s financial obligations under these arrangements are approximately $83.0 million in fiscal 2004 and similar
amounts annually thereafter. The Company leases all of its retail store locations under operating leases. The Company leases equipment,
from time to time, under capital leases. In addition, at any time, the Company is contingently liable for open letters of credit with foreign
suppliers of merchandise. At January 31, 2004, the Company’s future financial commitments under these arrangements are as follows:

Payments Due by Period 

Less More than 
Contractual Obligations (in millions) Total than 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years

Operating lease obligations $ 615.8 $ 81.1 $ 164.3 $ 157.8 $ 212.6

Capital lease obligations 2.2 1.0 1.2 — —

Long-term debt obligations 1.1 0.9 0.2 — —

Letters of credit 13.1 13.1 — — —

Total $ 632.2 $ 96.1 $ 165.7 $ 157.8 $ 212.6

The Company reviews the operating performance of its stores on an ongoing basis to determine which stores, if any, to expand,
relocate or close. Most leases contain cancellation or kick-out clauses in the Company’s favor that relieve the Company of any future
obligation under a lease if specified sales levels are not achieved by a specified date. The Company closed four stores in fiscal 2003

and anticipates closing approximately five stores in fiscal 2004.

NEW STORE COSTS

The Company’s average cost to build a new store in fiscal 2003, including leasehold improvements, furniture and fixtures, and net of
landlord allowances, was approximately $ 2 4 1,0 0 0 for PacSun stores, approximately $ 2 47,0 0 0 for PacSun Outlet stores, and approx i m a t e l y
$2 48,0 0 0 for d.e.m.o. stores. The average cost of expanding or relocating a PacSun store was approximately $ 407,0 0 0 and the average
cost of expanding or relocating a d.e.m.o. store was approximately $ 369,0 0 0 in fiscal 2 0 0 3. The average total cost to build new stores
and relocate or expand stores will vary in the future depending on various factors, including square footage, changes in store design,
local construction costs and landlord allowances. The Company’s average cost for initial inventory for new stores opened in fiscal
2003 was approximately $128,000 for PacSun stores, approximately $202,000 for PacSun Outlet stores, and approximately $167,000

for d.e.m.o. stores. The Company’s initial inventory for new stores will vary in the future depending on various factors, including store
concept and square footage.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Information regarding new accounting pronouncements is contained in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended January 31, 2004, which note is incorporated herein by this reference.

INFLATION

The Company does not believe that inflation has had a material effect on the results of operations in the recent past. There can be no
assurance that the Company’s business will not be affected by inflation in the future.

SEASONALITY AND QUARTERLY RESULTS

The Company’s business is seasonal by nature, with the Christmas and back-to-school periods historically accounting for the largest
percentage of annual net sales. The Company’s first quarter historically accounts for the smallest percentage of annual net sales. In
e a ch of fiscal 2 0 0 3 and fiscal 2 0 0 2, excluding sales generated by new and relocated/expanded stores, the Christmas and back- t o -s chool 
periods together accounted for approximately 36 % of the Company’s annual net sales and a higher percentage of the Company’s operating
income. In fiscal 2003, excluding net sales generated by new and relocated/expanded stores, approximately 43% of the Company’s
annual net sales occurred in the first half of the fiscal year and approximately 57% in the second half. The Company’s quarterly results
of operations may also fluctuate significantly as a result of a variety of factors, including the timing of store openings; the amount of revenue
contributed by new stores; the timing and level of markdowns; the timing of store closings, expansions and relocations; competitive
factors; and general economic conditions.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTSAN D RISK FACTORS

This report on Form 10-K contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and
Section 2 1E of the Exchange Act, and the Company intends that such forward-looking statements be subject to the safe harbors created
thereby. The Company is hereby providing cautionary statements identifying important factors that could cause the Company’s actual
results to differ materially from those projected in forward-looking statements of the Company herein. Any statements that express, or
involve discussions as to, expectations, beliefs, plans, objectives, assumptions, future events or performance (often, but not always through
the use of words or phrases such as “will result,” “expects to,” “will continue,” “anticipates,” “plans,” “intends,” “estimated,” “projects” and
“outlook”) are not historical facts and may be forward-looking and, accordingly, such statements involve estimates, assumptions and
uncertainties which could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking statements. All forward-
looking statements included in this report, including forecasts of fiscal 2004 planned new store openings, are based on i n f o r m a t i o n
available to the Company as of the date hereof, and the Company assumes no obligation to update or revise any such forw a r d - l o o k i n g
statements to reflect events or circumstances that occur after such statements are made. Such uncertainties include, among others,
the following factors:

M e r ch a n d i s i n g /Fashion Sensitivity. The Company’s success is largely dependent upon its ability to gauge the fashion tastes of its
c u stomers and to provide merchandise that satisfies customer demand in a timely manner. The Company’s failure to anticipate, identify
or react appropriately in a timely manner to changes in fashion trends could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s same
store sales results, operating margins, financial condition and results of operations. Misjudgments or unanticipated fashion changes
could also have a material adverse effect on the Company’s image with its customers.

Private Label Merchandise. Sales from private label merchandise accounted for approximately 32% and 33% of net sales in fiscal 2003

and fiscal 2 0 0 2, respectively. The Company may increase the percentage of net sales in private label merchandise in the future, although
there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to achieve increases in private label merchandise sales as a percentage of
net sales. Because the Company’s private label merchandise generally carries higher merchandise margins than its other merchandise,
the Company’s failure to anticipate, identify and react in a timely manner to fashion trends with its private label merchandise, particularly
if the percentage of net sales derived from private label merchandise increases, may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
same store sales results, operating margins, financial condition and results of operations.

Fluctuations in Comparable Store Net Sales Results. The Company’s comparable store net sales results have fluctuated significantly in
the past on a monthly, quarterly, and annual basis, and are expected to continue to fluctuate in the future. A variety of factors affect the
Company’s comparable store net sales results, including changes in fashion trends, changes in the Company’s merchandise mix, calendar
shifts of holiday periods, actions by competitors, weather conditions and general economic conditions. The Company’s comparable
store net sales results for any particular fiscal month, fiscal quarter or fiscal year in the future may decrease. As a result of these or
other factors, the Company’s future comparable store net sales results are likely to have a significant effect on the market price of the
Company’s common stock.

Expansion and Management of Growth. PacSun’s continued growth depends to a significant degree on its ability to open and operate
stores on a profitable basis and on management’s ability to manage the Company’s planned expansion. The Company has previously
announced plans to operate 1,40 0 stores by the end of 2 0 07, of which approximately 90 0 will be PacSun stores, approximately 1 0 0 w i l l
be PacSun Outlet stores, and approximately 40 0 will be d.e.m.o. stores. As of March 2 6, 2 0 04, the Company operated 888 stores, of
which 68 2 were PacSun stores, 79 were PacSun Outlet stores, and 1 27 were d.e.m.o. stores. The Company’s planned expansion is
dependent upon a number of factors, including the ability of the Company to locate and obtain favorable store sites, negotiate accepta b l e
lease terms, obtain adequate supplies of merchandise and hire and train qualified management level and other employees. Factors
beyond the Company’s control may also affect the Company’s ability to expand, including general economic and business conditions
affecting consumer spending. There can be no assurance that the Company will achieve its planned expansion, that such expansion will
be profitable, or that the Company will be able to manage its growth effectively. Any failure to manage growth could have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

Reliance on Key Personnel. The continued success of the Company is dependent to a significant degree upon the services of its key
personnel, particularly its executive officers. The loss of the services of any member of senior management could have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations. The Company’s success in the future will also be
dependent upon the Company’s ability to attract and retain qualified personnel. The Company’s inability to attract and retain qualified
personnel in the future could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

Dependence on Single Distribution Facility. The Company’s distribution functions for all of its stores and for internet sales are handled
from a single facility in Anaheim, California. Any significant interruption in the operation of the distribution facility due to natural disa s t e r s ,
accidents, system failures or other unforeseen causes would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial
c o ndition and results of operations. There can be no assurance that the Company’s new corporate office and distribution center will
be adequate to support the Company’s future growth.



Internet Sales. The Company’s internet operations are subject to numerous risks that could have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s operational results, including unanticipated operating problems, reliance on third party computer hardware and software providers,
system failures and the need to invest in additional computer systems. Specific risks include: (i) diversion of sales from PacSun stores; (ii) rapid
t e chnological change; (i i i) liability for online content; and (iv) risks related to the failure of the computer systems that operate the website and
its related support systems, including computer viruses, telecommunication failures and electronic break-ins and similar disruptions. In addition,
internet operations involve risks which are beyond the Company’s control that could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
o p e r a t i o n a l results, including: (i) price competition involving the items the Company intends to sell; (i i) the entry of the Company’s vendors
into the internet business, in direct competition with the Company; (i i i) the level of merchandise returns experienced by the Company;
(iv) governm e n tal regulation; (v) online security breaches; (vi) credit card fraud; and (vii) competition and general economic conditions specific
to the internet, online commerce and the apparel industry.

Economic Impact of Terrorist Atta cks or Wa r / Threat of Wa r. The majority of the Company’s stores are located in regional shopping
malls. Any threat of terrorist atta cks or actual terrorist events, particularly in public areas, could lead to lower customer traffic in regional
shopping malls. In addition, local authorities or mall management could close regional shopping malls in response to any immediate
security concern. Mall closures, as well as lower customer traffic due to security concerns, could result in decreased sales. Additionally,
war or the threat of war could significantly diminish consumer spending, resulting in decreased sales for the Company. Decreased
sales would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

Reliance on Foreign Sources of Production. The Company purchases merchandise directly in foreign markets for its private label brands.
In addition, the Company purchases merchandise from domestic vendors, some of which is manufactured overseas. The Company does
not have any long-term merchandise supply contracts and its imports are subject to existing or potential duties, tariffs and quotas. The
Company faces competition from other companies for production facilities and import quota capacity. The Company also faces a variety
of other risks generally associated with doing business in foreign markets and importing merchandise from abroad, such as: (i) political
i n s tability; (ii) enhanced security measures at United States ports, which could delay delivery of imports; (iii) imposition of new legislation
relating to import quotas that may limit the quantity of goods which may be imported into the United States from countries in a region
that the Company does business; (iv) imposition of duties, taxes, and other charges on imports; (v) delayed receipt or non-delivery of
goods due to the failure of foreign-source suppliers to comply with applicable import regulations; and (vi) local business practice and
p o l i t i c a l issues, including issues relating to compliance with domestic or international labor standards which may result in adverse publicity.
New initiatives may be proposed that may have an impact on the trading status of certain countries and may include retaliatory duties
or other trade sanctions that, if enacted, would increase the cost of products purchased from suppliers in countries that the Company
does business with. The inability of the Company to rely on its foreign sources of production due to any of the factors listed above
could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

Credit Facility Financial Covenants. A significant decrease in the Company’s operating results could adversely affect the Company’s
ability to maintain required financial ratios under the Company’s credit facility. Required financial ratios include a rolling four-quarter
EBITDA requirement, total liabilities to tangible net worth ratio, and limitations on capital expenditures. If these financial ratios are not
maintained, the bank will have the option to require immediate repayment of all amounts outstanding under the credit facility, if any. The
most likely result would require the Company to renegotiate certain terms of the credit agreement, obtain a waiver from the bank, or obta i n
a new credit agreement with another bank, which may contain different terms.

Stock Options. A number of publicly traded companies have recently announced that they will begin expensing stock option grants to
employees. In addition, the FASB and the Commission have indicated that possible rule changes requiring expensing of stock options may
be adopted in the near future. Currently, the Company includes such expenses on a pro forma basis in the notes to the Company’s quarterly
and annual financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America but does not
include compensation expense related to stock options in the Company’s reported financial statements. If accounting standards are ch a n g e d
to require the Company to expense stock options, the Company’s reported earnings will decrease and its stock price could decline.

Litigation. The Company is involved from time to time in litigation incidental to its business. Management believes that the outcome of
current litigation will not have a material adverse effect upon the results of operations or financial condition of the Company. However,
management’s assessment of the Company’s current litigation could change in light of the discovery of facts with respect to legal
actions pending against the Company not presently known to the Company or determinations by judges, juries or other finders of fact
which do not accord with management’s evaluation of the possible liability or outcome of such litigation.

Volatility of Stock Price. The market price of the Company’s common stock has fluctuated substantially in the past and there can be no
assurance that the market price of the common stock will not continue to fluctuate significantly. Future announcements or management
di scussions concerning the Company or its competitors, net sales and profitability results, quarterly variations in operating results or comparable
store net sales, changes in earnings estimates by analysts or changes in accounting policies, among other factors, could cause the market price
of the common stock to fluctuate substa n t i a l l y. In addition, stock markets have experienced extreme price and volume volatility in recent years.
This volatility has had a substantial effect on the market prices of securities of many smaller public companies for reasons frequently unrelated
to the operating performance of the specific companies.

* * * * * * * * * * * * *

The Company cautions that the risk factors described above could cause actual results or outcomes to differ materially from those
expressed in any forward-looking statements of the Company made by or on behalf of the Company. Further, management cannot
assess the impact of each such factor on the Company’s business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may
cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements.
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The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Pacific Sunwear of California, Inc.
Anaheim, California

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Pacific Sunwear of California, Inc. and its subsidiaries as of January 3 1,
2 0 04 and February 1, 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity, and cash
flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended January 31, 2004. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those sta n d a r d s
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
m i s s tatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial sta t e m e n ts.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Pacific Sunwear
of California, Inc. and its subsidiaries as of January 31, 2004 and Fe b r u ary 1, 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended January 3 1, 2004, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for goodwill and other inta n g i b l e
assets during the year ended February 1, 2003, as a result of adopting Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “ G o o d w i l l
and Other Intangible Assets,” effective February 3, 2002.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Costa Mesa, California
March 19, 2004

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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1st Quarter
2nd Quarter
3rd Quarter
4th Quarter

$ 10.74

13.07

19.00

19.49

Low

$ 15.67
20.43
24.22
24.56  

HighFiscal 2003

1st Quarter
2nd Quarter
3rd Quarter
4th Quarter

$ 8.92

7.21

7.21

10.15

Low

$ 11.91
11.05
11.19
13.41

HighFiscal 2002
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